
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA PACKET 
 

 
 
 

December 2, 2013 
Claremont City Hall    

7:00 pm 
 
 
 



            

 

 CITY OF CLAREMONT  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  

December 2, 2013  

7:00 PM 

Claremont City Hall, Council Chambers   

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA  

 

A. Regular Meeting- November 4,2013   

B. Closed Session – November 4, 2013  

C. Consideration to Accept Abstract of Votes Received During the November 5, 2013 

Election  

D. Resolution 10-13 Designation of FEMA Applicants Agent  

 

6. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

 

A. Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2013 Audit  

B. BGA Shell Building Agreement  

 

8. RECESS MEETING OF PRESENT CITY COUNCIL  

 

9. OATH OF OFFICE AND SEATING OF CITY COUNCIL  

 

10. ORGANIZATION OF CITY COUNCIL  

 

A. Recess  

B. Election of Mayor Pro Tempore & Committee Appointments  

 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Claremont Fire Chief  

B. Resolution 08-13 Western Piedmont Council of Government Delegate 

C. Resolution 09-13 Travel Policy Updates   

D. 2014 City Council Meeting Calendar  

 



“A progressive City dedicated to preserving small town values while planning for the future” 

12. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Youth Council Report 

B. Fire Department 

C. Police Department 

D. Public Works 

E. Rescue Squad  

F. Utilities Department  

G. Planning and Zoning 

H. Parks & Recreation Committee  

I. Appearance Committee 

 

13. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

 

14. CLOSED SESSION 

 

15. ADJOURN 

 
City of Claremont Board & Committee Meetings 

 
City Council Meeting        January 6

th
            Council Chambers 7:00pm 

 1
st
 Monday of each month 

 

Planning Board   December 9
th

          Council Chambers 7:00 pm  

2
nd

 Monday of each month 

 

Appearance Committee   December 23
rd

              O’Cup Bean & Bakery 6:00 pm  

4
th

 Monday of each month 

 

Parks & Recreation     December 23
rd

  
 
          Claremont City Offices 7:00 pm 

4
th

 Monday of each month 

 

Youth Council     January 4
th

       Council Chambers 3:00 pm 

1
st
 Sunday of each month 

 

Friends of the Library    December 24
th

   Claremont Library 6:00 pm  

4
th

 Tuesday of each month 

 

Seniors Morning Out    December 18
th

         1
st
 Baptist Fellowship Hall 8:30 am  

3
rd

 Wednesday of each month 

 

Claremont Christmas Parade  December 7
th

   Main Street 3pm   

1
st
 Saturday in December  

 

 

NOTES: 



EXHIBIT 5A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013        

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Approval of Minutes  

 

Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on November 4, 2013.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes    

 

 

 

 

 



Monday, November 4, 2013                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                            Page 1 of 5 

 
City of Claremont Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, November 4, 2013 
 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the PJ Stanley Memorial 
Training Room in the Tolbert Building of Justice at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, November 4, 2013. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor David Morrow, Mayor Pro 
Tem Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Shawn Brown, Councilmember Nicky Setzer, Councilmember 
Dale Sherrill and Councilmember Dale Setzer.    
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Doug Barrick, City 
Attorney Bob Grant, Administrative Support Clerk Wendy Helms, Lieutenant Allen Long, Public Works 
Director Tom Winkler, City Planner Laurie LoCicero and Police Chief Gary Bost. 
 
Others in attendance were: Henry Helton, Brian Helms, Melinda Bumgarner, Rebecca Rhodes, Angela 
Brown, Dayne Miller, Erin Mohl, Linh Deneault, Nick Deneault, Bob Squire, Jeff Barkley, Les Morrow, 
Cheyanne DeMauro, Robert Smith, Rupert Little, Gene Monday, Susan Tucker, Andrea Ramsey, Macon 
Monday, Sarah Monday, Jessalyn Johnson, Scott Ramsey, Connie Monday and Dennis Marshall. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor David Morrow called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as amended.   
 
3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The invocation was led by Dennis Marshall from Bethlehem United Methodist Church. Councilmember 
Nicky Setzer led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor David Morrow, City Manager Doug Barrick, Councilmember’s Shawn Brown and Timothy 
Lowrance attended the NCLM Conference held in Hickory during the week of October 12-15, 2013.  
Mayor Morrow also announces that there were 52 runners who participated in the 2nd Annual PJ Stanley 
Memorial 5K.  There have also been additions made to the history wall in City Hall. 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes – Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance made a motion to 
accept October 7, 2013 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   



Monday, November 4, 2013                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                            Page 2 of 5 

 
B. October 7, 2013 Closed Session Meeting Minutes- Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance made a 
motion to accept October 7, 2013 closed session meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember Shawn 
Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
6. CITIZEN’S CONCERN’S & COMMENTS 
 
Robert Smith with New Life Fellowship Church addressed council, thanking them for the support given 
to their church during their Halloween celebration in the park. 
 
 
7. PRESENTATION 
 
A. Communities of Distinction-    City Manager, Doug Barrick gave a brief presentation of the 
Communities of Distinction.  Claremont will be featured on a television show as a hidden gem of 
America.   This program will air on Sunday, November 11, 2013 at 4:00 p.m. on Fox Business Network. 
 
B.  Hickory Jaycees- Rebecca Rhodes with the Hickory Jaycees presented council with a check for 
$1,000 as a donation to the PJ Stanley Memorial.   
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING-  
  
A. Voluntary Annexation- Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to recess the open 
session and go into a Public Hearing, at 7:22 p.m., to discuss voluntary annexation.  Second was made 
by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The property owners at 2992 West Main Street have requested voluntary annexation into the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Claremont.  This property was previously stated for Annexation in 1985, however 
due to errors the annexation was never made official.  The Clerk certifies the sufficiency of the request 
as the City tries to honor the voluntary annexation request. 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Shawn Brown to close the Public Hearing at 7:24 p.m., and to go 
back into regular session. Second was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS- none 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS- 
 
A. Resolution 06-13 Appointment of Planning Board ETJ Members- Motion was made by 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to re-appoint Robert Smith and to appoint Todd Setzer to the 
Claremont Planning Board.  Second was made by Councilmember Shawn Brown. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
B.  Resolution 07-13 Local Water Supply Plan- The City of Claremont has submitted a Local Water 
Supply to NCDENR for both the City System and Shamrock Park System.  These plans have been 
reviewed and accepted by NCDENR.  In order to complete the submittal process and receive final 
compliance these plans must be approved by council.  Motion was made by Councilmember Nicky 
Setzer to approve the Local Water Supply Plans.  Second was made by Councilmember D.B. Setzer.  
Motion passed unanimously. 



Monday, November 4, 2013                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                            Page 3 of 5 

C. Ordinance 05-13 Tobacco Free- The City of Claremont recognizes that smoking and tobacco are 
health, safety and environmental hazards for employees and visitors. Claremont recognizes its obligation 
to promote a healthy environment, free from unwanted smoke and tobacco usage for everyone within its 
facilities and on its grounds. 
 
Claremont recognizes that adopting a 100% smoke and tobacco-free campus policy is an effective way 
to help protect its employees and visitors from the harmful effects of smoke and tobacco. As a 
government entity and employer, Claremont is on the forefront of promoting healthy behaviors. A major 
benefit of adopting a smoke and tobacco-free policy is a healthier workforce. In fact, the #1 reason why 
most people quit smoking and using tobacco is because their workplace has gone smoke and tobacco-
free.  
 
In coordination with other municipalities in the County and in support of the great American smoke out 
the City of Claremont proposes to transition to a tobacco free campus for all city buildings and grounds 
for both employees and visitors alike.  
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Shawn Brown to approve the Ordinance 05-13.  Second was made 
by Councilmember D.B. Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
D.  Ordinance 06-13 Annexation 13-02- The owners of 2992 West Main Street are requesting 
voluntary annexation into the Corporate Limits of the City of Claremont. This 1.23 acre tract is currently 
in the ETJ of the City of Claremont and is contiguous to current Corporate Limits, served by city 
utilities, and is served by all other city services. The City Clerk certifies the sufficiency of the request as 
the City tries to honor voluntary annexation requests, the proposed annexation would expand the City’s 
tax base, and the proposed annexation will not hamper the Cities ability to deliver public services to this 
parcel. 
 
A Public Hearing has been held and all requirements to annex this contiguous parcel have been fulfilled. 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to accept Ordinance 06-13.  Second was made 
by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
E.  Ordinance 07-13 Fire Department Updates- This ordinance updates the operational procedures of 
the Claremont Fire Department and transitions the administrative duties of the department to the Fire 
Chief and the officers of the department. These changes also establish the duties of the chief to issue 
standard operating guidelines for the department and align the membership requirements of the 
department to North Carolina Standards. It furthermore establishes the Standard Operating Guidelines as 
the basis of operations for the department.  
 
The highlighted sections of the ordinance reflect updates and or revisions from the current ordinance. 
This Ordinance was tabled until the December meeting due to the absence of Fire Chief, Bill Bump. 
 
F.  Approve Agreement for Bunker Hill Water Line Extension- Catawba County has obtained grant 
funding to assist with fire protection and the initial development of a county park at the Bunker Hill 
Covered Bridge site. In doing so the county proposes to extend the City water line at their cost. The line 
would become property of the City and the City would in turn share water sales revenue with the County 
for any connections on that portion of the line for the next 40 years.  Motion was made by 
Councilmember Shawn Brown to approve for the City Attorney and City Manager to execute the 
agreement pending final wording.  Second was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
11. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 



Monday, November 4, 2013                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                            Page 4 of 5 

A. Youth Council – Cheyanne DeMauro reported for the Youth Council.  She announced that the Youth 
Council will serve as waiters and waitresses for the December 14th Senior Dinner.  The Youth Council is 
also taking up food and toys for Christmas. 
 
B. Police Department – Chief Gary Bost gave the Police Department report.  Highlights included 4 
DWI arrests. 
 
C. Fire Department –.  Assistant Chief, Brian Helms gave the Fire Department report.   
 
D. Public Works –.  Public Works Director, Tom Winkler gave the Public Works report.  Public Works 
employees installed 100 AMR water meters this month. 
 
E. Rescue Squad –.  Jessalyn Johnson spoke on behalf of the Rescue Squad. 
 
F. Utilities Department – City Manager, Doug Barrick reported on the Utilities Department.  The 
Maintenance Department rebuilt the pumps at the Mom n Pops Lift Station.  Also they are working with 
FEMA and NCEM on the remaining cleanup needed along Lyle and McLin Creeks. 
 
G. Planning and Zoning – City Planner, Laurie LoCicero reported that the Planning Board met in 
October to discuss potential subdivision revisions. 
 
H.  Parks and Recreation Committee- City Councilmember Timothy Lowrance spoke about the Park 
Survey.  It has been completed and community meetings will follow. 
 
I.  Appearance Committee- City Councilmember Nicky Setzer spoke on behalf of the Appearance 
Committee.  They would like to purchase 2 more memorial benches. 
 
12.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT- City Manager, Doug Barrick invited everyone to City Hall 
on November 14th, 2013.  There will be two public input sessions about the Recreation Master Plan.  
The first session will be held at 12:00 – 1:30 p.m. and the other will be held at 6:00 – 7:30 p.m.  He also 
announced that renovations will begin at City Hall On Wednesday, November 5th. 
 
13.  CLOSED SESSION- The City of Claremont City Council under attorney Client privileges and 
General Statues  held a Closed Session to discuss the following matters  
 

 A Potential EDC Contract  (General Statue 143-318.11(4) 
 A Personnel Matter  (General Statue 143-318.11(6) 

 
Motion was made by Councilmember Shawn Brown to go into closed session at 8:05 p.m.  Second was 
made by Councilmember D.B. Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to reconvene the regular session at 9:25 p.m.  
Second was made by Councilmember Shawn Brown.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
14.  ADJOURN- Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to adjourn the meeting at 
9:26 p.m.  Second was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monday, November 4, 2013                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                            Page 5 of 5 

Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, Administrative Support Clerk 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
     David B. Morrow, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attested: 
 
 
____________________________ 
  Douglas L. Barrick, City Clerk  



EXHIBIT 5B 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013       

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Approval of Minutes  

 

Approve the minutes from the City Council Closed Session meeting held on  

November 4, 2013.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes    

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 5C 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013        

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Acceptance of Abstract of Votes Received During the 

November 5, 2013 Elections 

 

A general election for the office of Mayor and two City Council Seats took place on 

November 5, 2013. The final vote results have been tallied by the Catawba County 

Board of Elections and are shown in the attached abstract. The abstract of votes shows 

that Shawn Brown as won the Mayoral Seat, Dayne Miller and Tim Lowrance have won 

the City Council seats. by accepting this abstract you are validating these results.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Accept the Votes     

 

 

 

 

 





















dbarrick
Typewritten Text
10-13

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text


dbarrick
Typewritten Text
CITY OF CLAREMONT NORTH CAROLINA

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
CITY OF CLAREMONT 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
FEMA 4153-DR-NC

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
July 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
01

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
56

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
6018221

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
035

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
12720

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
00

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Doug Barrick 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
City of Claremont 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
City Manager						Administrative Support Clerk 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
PO Box 446						PO Box 446 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Claremont, NC 28610					Claremont, NC 28610 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
828-466-7255						828-466-7255

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
828-459-0596						828-459-0596

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
828-312-4715

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Wendy Helms 	

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
City of Claremont 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
David B Morrow 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Mayor 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
828-466-7255

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Shawn Brown, Councilman, Dale Sherrill, Councilman 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
D.B. Setzer, Councilman , Nicky Setzer, Councilman 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Tim Lowrance, Mayor Pro Temp 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
David B. Morrow 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
Mayor 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
City of Claremont 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
2nd 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
December 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
13

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
December 2, 2013 

dbarrick
Typewritten Text
City of Claremont Resolution 10-13 									December 2, 2013 





EXHIBIT 6 
 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013       

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 
 

Action Requested: Citizen’s Concerns and Comments  
 
North Carolina General Statues require that the City Council allow time at each public 

meeting for Citizen Input.  

 
 

 

 
Recommendation: Hear Public Concerns and Comments   
 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 7A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  City of Claremont Fiscal Year 2013 Audit Presentation   

 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.will present the findings of the Fiscal Year 

2013 Audit.  

 
 

  

 

 

Recommendation:  Hear the Presentation and Ask Questions  

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF CLAREMONT 
2013 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Audit Process 
 Planning and risk assessment 
 Interim procedures 
 Final procedures 
 Year-round process 



Audit Highlights 
 

 Unmodified opinion 
 Cooperative staff 

 



Audit Highlights-General Fund 
 

  General Fund cash        $ 1,697,262           
  General Fund revenues       $ 2,703,520 
  General Fund expenditures      $ 2,939,263 
 

 



Fund Balance 
 Serves as a measure of the Town’s financial resources 

available. 
 Assets – (Liabilities-Deferred Inflows of Resources) = 

Fund Balance 
5 Classifications: 

 Non spendable - not in cash form 
 Restricted - external restrictions (laws, grantors) 
 Committed - internal constraints at the highest (Board) 

level-do not expire, require Board action to undo 
 Assigned - internal constraints, lower level than 

committed 
 Unassigned - no external or internal constraints 



Fund Balance 
Available fund balance as defined by the Local Government 
Commission (LGC) is calculated as follows: 
 
Total Fund Balance  
Less:  Non spendable (not in cash form, not available) 
Less:  Stabilization by State Statute (by state law, not available) 
Available Fund Balance 
 
This is the calculation utilized as the basis for comparing you 
to other units and calculating your fund balance percentages. 

  



Fund Balance – General Fund 

  Decrease in fund balance         $   (232,320) 

  Fund balance - General Fund            $   1,756,558 

  Available fund balance     $   1,626,345 

  Available fund balance is 55% of General Fund 
      expenditures     
 



Audit Highlights 

  2013 property tax revenues     $ 1,720,717 
  2012 property tax revenues     $ 1,623,616  
 
  2013 collection rate             97.82% 
  2012 collection rate     98.22 % 



General Fund Balance History 



Property Valuation History 



General Fund Revenues 
 
 
 



General Fund Revenues 2012 and 2013 



General Fund Revenues 2012 and 2013 



General Fund Expenditures 



General Fund Expenditures 2012 and 2013 



General Fund Expenditures 2012 and 2013 



General Fund Expenditures 2012 and 2013 



Water and Sewer Fund 
    2013  2012 

 

 Operating revenues         $ 1,106,275     $1,052,141 
 
 Operating expenses         $ 1,011,599     $   935,584 
 
 Change in net position         $      77,229     $     98,691 



Water and Sewer Fund 
    2013  2012 

 

 Cash flow from operations       $  176,185        $  281,605 
 

 Required debt service         $  157,228        $  237,557 
 

 Unrestricted net position          $   799,742        $ 724,807 





EXHIBIT 7B 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  BGA Shell Building Agreement    

 

Scott Millar with the Catawba County EDC will give a brief presentation on an 

agreement to encourage the private development of a shell manufacturing building to 

facilitate the creation of new jobs and future tax base with the existing Claremont 

International Business Park.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation:  Hear the Presentation and Approve Agreement   

 

 

 

 

 



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:   City of Claremont 
From:   Scott Millar, Catawba County EDC 
Date:   December 2, 2013 
Re:   Shell Building Proposal 
 
Request 
The EDC is proposing a partnership with the City of Claremont, the EDC Committee of 100, and 
the County to encourage the private development of a shell manufacturing building to facilitate 
the creation of new jobs and future tax base.  This is a priority of the Innovate Catawba 
program. 
 
Background 
The recent competitiveness analysis performed by the Southern Growth Policy Board 
highlighted the lack of modern, high-ceiling manufacturing buildings in Catawba County as an 
impediment for new industry recruitment.  Competitor counties inside the region and across 
the Southeast have located new jobs and tax base due to a focus on encouraging and 
developing shell buildings suitable for new and expanding industry location, with many of them 
having success as a result.  Innovate Catawba, the County-wide effort to transform Catawba 
County’s economic competitiveness, has a focused initiative to develop competitively priced 
sites and buildings in order to facilitate such opportunities, and this project is not only trying to 
result in that singular building but to serve as a model for potentially other public- and private- 
partnerships that may result in the availability of one or more shell buildings at any given time 
within Catawba County—and the potential for more jobs and tax base generation. 
 
Overview 
BG&A Properties, LLC, owns an approximate 10 acre graded site in Claremont International 
Business Park which has been independently appraised at $295,000, and BG&A has proposed 
the construction of an expandable, 51,200 square foot shell manufacturing facility with ceiling 
heights of up to 32 feet.  The cost of this facility is $1,442,000.  The facility would be of an 
attractive, insulated, pre-cast concrete construction according to agreed upon specifications.  
BG&A would be responsible for financing and constructing the facility within a given timeframe 
and would be responsible for the cost and risk associated with the facility should the facility not 
sell during the timeframe considered under this proposal. 
 
Catawba County, the City of Claremont, and the EDC’s Committee of 100 would all be 
participants in the agreement to share initial costs and carrying costs to encourage BG&A to 
take on the substantial risk associated with this speculative building. 
 

Initial Building and Permitting Fees: 
The City and County would agree to waive any Soil & Erosion permit fees and 
Construction permitting fees under their control, as well as any impact fees or utility 
connection and tap fees that may be associated with the project.   



 
Grants: 
The City of Claremont would agree to grant back an amount equal to any property taxes 
received on the building for the initial construction period and a period of up to 48 
months from the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy or until the sale of 
the shell facility. 
 
Catawba County would agree to grant back an amount equal to any property taxes 
received on the building for the initial construction period and a period of up to 36 
months from the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy or until the sale of 
the shell facility. 
 
Carrying Cost Assistance by the EDC, Claremont, and Catawba County: 
“Carrying Cost Assistance” herein described consists of Facility interest costs, insurance, 
and electricity costs for the Facility described in the contract. 
 
The Catawba County Economic Development Corporation’s Committee of 100 would 
agree to provide $10,000 in assistance for the project to defray facility costs for interest, 
electricity, and insurance up to three times in months 1, 13, and 25 following the 
issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, or until the sale of the facility, 
whichever comes first. 
 
The City of Claremont would agree to provide $36,000 per year in assistance for the 
project to defray facility costs for interest, electricity, and insurance for up to three 
years following the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, or until the sale of 
the facility, whichever comes first. 
 
Catawba County would agree to provide $36,000 per year in assistance for the project 
to defray facility costs for interest, electricity, and insurance for up to three years 
following the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, or until the sale of the 
facility, whichever comes first. 
 

If the building is sold during the first 36 months from the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of 
Occupancy (TCO), the proceeds from the sale will be distributed in the following order: 

1. Payment for the Land in the amount of $295,000. 
2. Payment for the Shell Facility in the amount of $1,442,000. 
3. Any remaining proceeds will be distributed to the County, the City of Claremont, and the 

EDC proportionately to the percentage of Carrying Cost Assistance to date up to 100%. 
4. Any remaining funds will be distributed to BG&A. 

 
If the building is sold during the months 37-42 as a result of marketing activities by the EDC, 
City, or County during the initial 36 months from the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of 
Occupancy (TCO), the proceeds from the sale will be distributed in the following order: 

1. Payment for the Land in the amount of $295,000. 



2. Payment for the Shell Facility in the amount of $1,442,000. 
3. Any remaining proceeds will be distributed to the County, the City of Claremont, EDC, 

and any costs BG&A has incurred during months 37-42 on interest, insurance, electricity 
and property taxes will be distributed proportionately to the percentage of Carrying 
Cost Assistance to date up to 100% of those expenses. 

4. Any remaining funds will be distributed to BG&A. 
 
Except under the special circumstance of a buyer in months 37-42, no Carry Cost Assistance 
reimbursement will be made after 36 months from the issuance of the Temporary Certificate of 
Occupancy to the City, County or EDC should the facility not be sold in that period of time. 
 
Recommendation 
The EDC recommends approval of a contractual agreement among the City, County, EDC, and 
BG&A Properties to facilitate up to three years Claremont funding at $36,000 per year, the 
waiver of City-specific Soil & Erosion, Building permit fees for the shell building, utility tap, 
connection, or impact fees, and grants to the developer equal to the amount of City property 
taxes on the shell facility for a period of time not to exceed four years from the issuance of a 
Temporary Certificate of Occupancy.   
 



Building for Jobs-Spec Building Partnership  
 

Objective: Develop buildings & business parks 
to facilitate the creation of high quality jobs 

throughout Catawba County 



Economic Development  Infrastructure 

• Economic Development Sites & Parks are public infrastructure 
investments, should be considered similar to investments in 
water, sewer, other public facilities, should receive permanent 
commitment & funding 

• 2007: ¼ cent Sales Tax approved with commitment to support 
Economic Development 

• Regional and national competitors are committing significant, 
long term, consistent funding to public ED infrastructure  

• Gaston Tech Park 

• Iredell, Cabarrus and other shells under construction, 
possibly “sold before completion” 

2 



• Develop the first of several potential shell facility requests & 
business park requests; designed to be reproduced in a non-
competing fashion around the County 

• This proposal represents a low cost, low risk carrot to cause 
speculative business activity; less expensive than alternate 
solutions  

• Does not, however, avoid the potential need to incentivize 
future project announcements at this location, and should be 
part of a greater plan for product development 

 

 

3 



Spec Building Proposal 
BGA Drive, Claremont 

Catawba County, Claremont, BG&A, and EDC Committee of 100  

51,200 expandable to 130,000sf 
Pre-Cast Concrete with Architectural Details 

28-32’ ceiling heights 
10 acres graded with all utilities nearby 



10 Acre Graded Site in Claremont International Business Park 

Site 



Primary Tenets of Proposal 
BGA Properties finances & constructs a completed shell building 

by July 31, 2014 to Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 
according to agreed specifications 

BGA pays building insurance & security lighting costs and 
assumes long-term facility ownership risk 

Claremont/County/EDC Support 
• Permitting, Soil & Erosion Control and Approval Costs are 

reimbursed or waived 
• Tap & Utility fees, up to 36 mos. Grant equal to shell building 

property taxes by City (48 mos.) & County (36 mos.) 
• Carrying Cost Reimbursement*: 

Claremont:   $36,000/yr. up to 3 years 
County:   $36,000/yr. up to 3 years  
EDC Comm of 100:  $10,000/yr. up to 3 years  
*bldg. interest, electricity, insurance and escrow for contingency

  



Primary Tenets of Proposal 
• Facility to be sold to user creating jobs at or above County 

average wage 
• At sale in the first 36 months, Eligible Carrying Costs for yrs 1-3 

by City/County/EDC repaid proportionately out of any 
remainder after land & building payment 

• A sale in mos. 37-42 that can be proven to have originated by 
EDC sources in the first 36 months shares carrying costs to all 
parties pro rata. 

• No City/County/EDC costs are reimbursed after mo. 36 (unless 
a qualifying sale in mos. 37-42 occurs)  

• Competitive Pricing Determined by 3 votes for BGA and 3 
votes for Claremont, Catawba County and EDC; majority 
required for any action 

• Taxes, Permits, Fees begin at the time of a sale to the end user 

• Developer can buy out City/County/EDC at any time by 
reimbursing carrying cost expenditures to date 

 



Product Development Parts 2 & 3: 

• Determine other shell building partnerships using the desired 
approach of developing and keeping competitive product on 
the I-40 axis and on the NC16/US321 axis – “batting, on deck, 
& warming up” 

• Develop competitive solutions for those needing greenfield 
sites 

• Certification of Newton Corporate Center (pending) 

• Infrastructure construction at NC DataCampus/MJP 

• Evaluation of new Business Park locations 

• Redevelopments, Demo Fee Waiver program 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Spec Building Proposal 
BGA Drive, Claremont 

Catawba County, Claremont, BG&A, and EDC Committee of 100  

Questions? 



Potential Shell Facility Locations-Countywide 

D
R

A
F

T
 



Example 1  
(Sale at 12 months for $1.9M) 

Sale Proceeds   $    1,900,000 

Land payment   $    (  295,000)* 

Building payment  $ (  1,442,000)** 

Building Interest @ Prime $     (   46,865) 

Electricity & Insurance $     (   11,600) 

City/Co./C100 Repayment  $     (   90,000)          

Overage to Developer  $          14,535 

 
*price determined by third party appraisal; developer responsible for 

$94,000 road 

**price has been verified by two other contractors 



Example 2  
(Sale at 24 mos. for $1.95M, Interest rising 1% mo. 13) 

Sale Proceeds   $  1,950,000 

Land payment   $    (295,000) 

Building payment  $ (1,442,000) 

Less Building Interest  $     (108,150) 

Less Insurance & Elect. $       (23,200) 

City/County/EDC repayment $      (81,650)* 

Remainder to developer $         -0- 

 
* partial repayment, split pro rata by City/County/EDC at 44.4%, 44.4%, 

11.1% respectively 

 

 



Example 3  
(Sale at 42 mos. for $2.2M to EDC lead,  

interest rising 1% at mo. 13 and again at mo. 24) 

Sale Proceeds   $   2,200,000 

Land payment    $    (295,000)* 

Building payment  $ (1,442,000) 

Less Building Interest (pub.) $     (183,855) 

Less Building Interest (dev.) $     (  37,853) 

Less Insurance & Elect.(pub.)       (  34,800) 

Less Insurance & Elect.(dev.)        (    9,800) 

Remainder to be split pro rata $   196,692 
*developer responsible for $94,000 road 

** partial repayment, split pro rata by participants including developer 

 

 



NORTH CAROLINA 

CATAWBA COUNTY       AGREEMENT  
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _________ day of         , 2013, by and between 
CATAWBA COUNTY, a North Carolina body politic corporate in nature, hereinafter referred to as “Catawba”, the 
CITY OF CLAREMONT, a North Carolina municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Claremont”, BG&A 

PROPERTIES, LLC., a North Carolina limited liability company, hereinafter “BG&A”, and CATAWBA 

COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a North Carolina 501(c)3 non-profit corporation, 
hereinafter referred to as “EDC”,  

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
BG&A is the owner of a +/-10 acre tract of land located in Catawba County, North Carolina and more 

particularly described on Exhibit A attached and incorporated by reference, hereinafter referred to as “Site”.  The 
parties wish to cause construction of a shell building on the Site on certain terms and conditions which are mutually 
acceptable.  In consideration of the foregoing and in consideration of various reciprocal promises and undertakings 
herein set forth, the parties agree as follows, consistent with North Carolina General Statutes 158-7.1 and 160A-17: 

 
1. BG&A will cause the construction of a 51,200 square foot building on the Site, to its shelled-in state of 

completion, according to the plans and specifications further defined in Exhibit B attached and 
incorporated by reference.  At its own expense, BG&A shall secure financing for the shell building 
construction and Site improvements.  BG&A will use its best efforts to cause said building to be 
completed to its shelled-in state of completion according to the plans and specifications on or before 
July 31, 2014.  Catawba and Claremont, at their expense, shall have the right periodically to inspect the 
construction of the building.   

2. BG&A will maintain all portions of the Site and Building, will maintain fire and extended coverage 
insurance on the building, will pay all utilities used in maintaining and constructing the building, and 
will pay all taxes on the land and building.  BG&A will guarantee the workmanship for the erection of 
the building to its shelled-in state to be of good quality for twenty-four (24) months after the issuance 
of the temporary certificate of occupancy.  This is in addition to any warranty given by the building 
materials, equipment, and/or roofing manufacturers.  These warranties shall be transferred to a buyer 
of the Site and the building during the period of such warranties. 

3. Catawba and Claremont agree to waive any soil and erosion control permitting fees, shell building 
construction permitting fees, and water and sewer connection and impact fees under their control as an 
incentive for the erection of the shell building.  Catawba and Claremont will not receive any 
reimbursement of these fees.  

4. Upon sale of the facility to an end user, Claremont shall provide sufficient water and sewer lines to the 
property boundary at Claremont’s expense. 

5. Catawba agrees to provide grants equal to the amount of any County property taxes for the Site and 
shell building (the “Facility”) during the construction period (beginning with the date of the issuance 
of the shell building construction permit) and for the period of up to 36 months after the issuance of a 
Temporary Certificate of Occupancy.  This incentive shall terminate upon the sale of the shell building 
or 36 months after issuance of the Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, whichever comes first. 

6. Claremont agrees to provide grants equal to the amount of any City property taxes for the Site and 
Shell building (the “Facility”) during the construction period (beginning with the date of the issuance 
of the shell building construction permit) and for the period of up to 48 months after the issuance of a 
Temporary Certificate of Occupancy.  This incentive shall terminate upon the sale of the shell building 
or 48 months after issuance of the Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, whichever comes first. 



7. Upon the issuance of the Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the Facility, the EDC will grant to 
BG&A the sum of $10,000 to help defray interim carrying costs of the facility.  Should the Facility not 
have theretofore been sold, the EDC will provide an additional grant of $10,000 at the beginning of 
months 13 and 25 following the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, with a maximum 
aggregate grant from the EDC of $30,000. 

8. Catawba and Claremont agree to reimburse interim “Carrying Costs” to BG&A on a pro-rated 
quarterly basis for a period of 36 months as established herein.  Carrying Costs are defined to include 
interim financing costs on Facility construction and Site improvements with such financing costs to be 
equal to Prime Rate as listed in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of each calendar month.  
Carrying costs shall begin on the date of the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, shall 
include interest, insurance, and electricity, and shall be paid quarterly in arrears up to a maximum of 
$36,000 annually and $108,000 total for Catawba and $36,000 annually and $108,000 total for 
Claremont for a maximum of 36 months.  

9. The sale of the facility shall be to an end user creating jobs at or above the county average wage.  
Should the employer not create jobs at or above the County average wage, the price of the facility shall 
be adjusted upward to reflect the cost of the road less any remaining funds from grants referenced in  
paragraphs 7 and 8 above after the proceeds are distributed under paragraphs 11(c), 11(d), and 11(e) 
herein.  Upon the sale of the Facility to an end user creating qualifying jobs, City, County, and EDC all 
agree to aggressively pursue grants, industrial access funding, and other similar infrastructure 
programs that may then be available to defray the cost of such access road. 

10. Sales Pricing for the Facility will be established as follows: 
a. Land:  A certified appraisal of the Site has been made in order to determine the fair market 

value of the Site upon the hypothetical condition that access is provided via a paved road and 
that all infrastructure is in place and ready for development.  The appraisal for the site is 
predicated on the assumption the site is environmentally clean; should any remediation be 
required for an acceptable environmental report, compensation for the site shall be reduced 
accordingly. 

b. Shell Building: BG&A will have three (3) votes for the determination of an acceptable asking 
price for the sales price and terms for the Facility.  Claremont and Catawba and EDC together 
shall have three (3) votes for the pricing and terms.  No decision shall be made without a 
minimum of four (4) affirmative votes.  Should pricing negotiations occur affecting the price 
and terms, the same majority vote will be required to change the price and terms for the 
Facility.  In any negotiations concerning the price and terms of the sale of the Facility, the 
parties will have the same voting rights as set forth above.  

c. Shell Building Upfits and/or Expansions: The Parties agree that it may not always be the end 
user’s preference to use the builder of the shell building for upfits or expansions. The Parties 
agree that it shall be a requirement to any sales transaction of the Facility that BG&A, or its 
designated contractor, shall be given the opportunity to submit a bid on any such building 
upfit or expansion to the Buyer of the Facility. 

11. Upon the sale of the Facility, the proceeds from the sale will be distributed in this order: 
a. The Landowner (BG&A) will be paid for the land in the amount of $295,000.00. 
b. The Developer (BG&A) will be paid for the costs of site improvements and construction 

defined in Exhibit B, in the amount of One Million, Four Hundred Forty Two Thousand 
Dollars ($1,442,000.00). 

c. If a sale should occur during the first 36 months following the issuance of a Temporary 
Certificate of Occupancy, and should any additional proceeds remain, Participants to this 
agreement that have funded carrying costs to the date of sale will be reimbursed pro rata 
according to their participation.   It is understood that any such proceeds will be earmarked by 
Catawba and Claremont for future shell building projects should such a program then exist. 



d. If a sale should occur in months 37-42 following the issuance of a temporary certificate of 
occupancy and with agreement the project resulted due to efforts by the EDC, City, or County 
during months 1-36 by a minimum of 4 of the 6 voting members, any remaining proceeds 
from the sale shall be distributed pro rata by participants not to exceed 100% of their 
participation.  This distribution shall include costs BG&A may have incurred on interest, 
electricity, insurance, and taxes incurred during those months 37-42.   

e. If a sale should occur at any time following month 36 there shall be no distribution of 
proceeds to City, County or EDC unless as provided within paragraph 10.d. herein referenced. 

f. Should any additional proceeds remain, BG&A will receive any remainder in their entirety. 
12. BG&A may buy out Catawba, Claremont and EDC at any time by reimbursing all eligible carrying 

costs contributed by these parties to the date of the buyout.    
13. Catawba agrees to participate in no more than two additional shell building construction projects in the 

County at any given time.  An instance of participation will be defined as a project that currently has 
any outstanding and unreimbursed shell building expenditures under this program.  

14. This agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North 
Carolina; venue of any action shall be in the general courts of justice in Catawba County, or if in 
Federal Court, in the Western District of North Carolina. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 
 
CATAWBA COUNTY 
By: __________________  
 
CITY OF CLAREMONT 
By: __________________ 
 
B G & A PROPERTIES, LLC 
By: __________________ 
 
CATAWBA COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
By: __________________________ 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



E
X

H
IB

IT A



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



E
X

H
IB

IT B



E
X

H
IB

IT B



E
X

H
IB

IT B



E
X

H
IB

IT B



E
X

H
IB

IT B



E
X

H
IB

IT B



 
 



EXHIBIT 9  

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013  

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Swearing In of New Mayor & Council Members  

 

Per the City Charter and North Carolina General Statues each newly elected or re-

elected Mayor and Councilmember shall swear to the Oath of Office for the City.  

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Swear in new Mayor & Councilmembers 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

City of Claremont 
Incorporated 1893 

 
P.O. Box 446                           

CLAREMONT, NORTH CAROLINA 28610 
          

 
December 2, 2013  

 
OATH OF OFFICE 

 
 
 
“I, Shawn R. Brown  do solemnly swear that I will support and maintain the Constitution 
and laws of the United States, and the constitution and laws of the State of North 
Carolina, not inconsistent therewith, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of my 
office as Mayor, so help me God.” 
 
 
 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
By the authority vested in me as a North Carolina Representative to the General 
Assembly, I now declare you are duly sworn to this office. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    
Representative Mitchell S. Setzer  
North Carolina House of Representatives District 89  



 
 

City of Claremont 
Incorporated 1893 

 
P.O. Box 446                           

CLAREMONT, NORTH CAROLINA 28610 
          

 
December 2, 2013  

 
OATH OF OFFICE 

 
 
 
“I, Dayne L. Miller   do solemnly swear that I will support and maintain the Constitution 
and laws of the United States, and the constitution and laws of the State of North 
Carolina, not inconsistent therewith, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of my 
office as Councilman, so help me God.” 
 
 
 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
By the authority vested in me as a North Carolina Representative to the General 
Assembly, I now declare you are duly sworn to this office. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    
Representative Mitchell S. Setzer  
North Carolina House of Representatives District 89  



 
 

City of Claremont 
Incorporated 1893 

 
P.O. Box 446                           

CLAREMONT, NORTH CAROLINA 28610 
          

 
December 2, 2013  

 
OATH OF OFFICE 

 
 
 
“I, Timothy A. Lowrance, do solemnly swear that I will support and maintain the 
Constitution and laws of the United States, and the constitution and laws of the State of 
North Carolina, not inconsistent therewith, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties 
of my office as Councilman, so help me God.” 
 
 
 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
By the authority vested in me as a North Carolina Representative to the General 
Assembly, I now declare you are duly sworn to this office. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    
Representative Mitchell S. Setzer  
North Carolina House of Representatives District 89  



EXHIBIT 10A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013  

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Swearing In of New Council Members and Committee 

Appointments   

 

Per the City Charter and North Carolina General Statues each newly elected or re-

elected councilmember shall swear to the Oath of Office for the City. The Charter also 

requires that after the election the council shall select one member to serve as the Mayor 

Pro Tem to perform the duties of the Mayor in his or her absence.  

 

The election process also calls for the appointment of City Council members to 

committees. The list below shows the committees, required members from the City 

Council and current membership. The Council can reappoint or appoint new members to 

each committee.  

 

Committee Required Membership Current Members 

Youth Council  0 D.B. Setzer 

Parks & Recreation 

Committee  

2 Shawn Brown & Tim 

Lowrance 

Appearance Committee  1 Nicky Setzer  

PJ Stanley Memorial 

Scholarship Committee 

1 Dale Sherrill  

 

 

 

Recommendation: Vote on a Mayor Pro Tem, Appoint or Reappoint Committee 

Members  

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 11 
 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013       

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 
 

Action Requested: Claremont Fire Chief Swearing In Ceremony   
 
The Fire Chief selection committee has recommended Bart Travis as the next Fire Chief 

for the City of Claremont. Bart comes to the City with and extensive fire service 

background and brings with him a depth of leadership ability to lead our department into 

the future.  

 

 

 
Recommendation: Swear in and welcome Bart Travis as the City’s next Fire Chief    
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

City of Claremont 
Incorporated 1893 

 
P.O. Box 446                           

CLAREMONT, NORTH CAROLINA 28610 
          

 
December 2, 2013  

 
OATH OF OFFICE 

 
 
 
“I, Bart W. Travis, do solemnly swear that I will support and maintain the Constitution 
and laws of the United States, and the constitution and laws of the State of North 
Carolina, not inconsistent therewith, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of my 
office as Fire Chief, so help me God.” 
 
 
 
 
______________________ 
 
 
 
By the authority vested in me as Clerk of the City of Claremont, I now declare you are 
duly sworn to this office. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    
Douglas L. Barrick  
City Clerk 



EXHIBIT 11A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013  

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: Approve Resolution 08-13 WPCOG Policy Board Members  

 

The Western Piedmont Council of Governments (WPCOG) has asked the City of 

Claremont to appoint a Policy Board Member and Alternate for the calendar year 2014 

to represent the City. The Policy Board meets once a month at various host cities or sites 

throughout the region to guide the WPCOG.  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Appoint Members and Approve Resolution     

 

 

 

 

 





City of Claremont Resolution 08-13   December 2, 2013 

        
 

CITY OF CLAREMONT  
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
RESOLUTION # 08-13 

 

 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING WESTERN PEIDMONT COUNICL OF 

GOVERNMENTS POLICY BOARD MEMBERS FOR 2014 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Claremont is an active member of the Western Piedmont 
Council of Governments; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Western Piedmont Council of Governments Policy Board is comprised 
of council members of this member jurisdictions; and   
 
WHEREAS, in order to ensure fair representation from all of its members  the Western 
Piedmont Council of Governments has asked each member city to designate one voting 
delegate and one alternate delegate for the Policy Board;  

                               
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Council of the City of 
Claremont that the Council herby designates Councilmember _____________ to serve as 
the Council’s voting delegate to the Western Piedmont Council of Governments for the 
calendar year 2014.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOVLED that the Council herby designates Councilmember 
________________________ to serve as the Council’s alternate voting delegate to the 
Western Piedmont Council of Governments for the calendar year 2014. 
   
 
Adopted this 2nd day of December 2013. 
      
 
 

__________________________ 
     Shawn Brown, Mayor     
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Doug Barrick  
City Clerk 

 

 



EXHIBIT 9C 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 3, 2013      

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Approve Resolution 09-13 Amending the City of Claremont 

Travel Policy     

 

The attached policy reflects current legal and governmental regulations as well as other 

updates that have not been addressed since new auditing standards have been adopted. 

The New policy limits food expenses, sets the mileage rate, and increases safeguards for 

the City.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution    

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF CLAREMONT  
TRAVEL POLICY  

 

 
 
. 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved: December 2, 2013 
Effective: January 1, 2014 

 
 
 



City of Claremont Resolution 09-13   December 2, 2013 

        
 

CITY OF CLAREMONT  
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
RESOLUTION # 09-13 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF CLAREMONT TRAVEL POLICY 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Claremont City Council expresses its intent to provide City employees, 

city council and volunteers  with the opportunity to travel for training, professional 

conferences and other purposes for the operation of the City; and  

  

WHEREAS, the amended City of Claremont Travel Policy will enhance the Cities 

efforts to provide efficient and responsible service to the citizens of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is authorized to interpret where necessary all provisions 

of this policy; and  

 

WHEREAS, all other previous or conflicting travel policies are repealed in their entirety 

and replaced with this policy, and only exceptions to this policy will be resolution based 

on the recommendation of the City Manager.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOVLED, that the Claremont City Council hereby 

adopts and implements the amended City of Claremont Travel Policy with an effective 

date of January 1, 2014.  

 

Adopted this 2
nd

 day of December 2013. 

 

__________________________ 

     Shawn Brown, Mayor      

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

Doug Barrick  

City Clerk 

 

 



CITY OF CLAREMONT  

TRAVEL POLICY  

 

I. Request for Travel 

An employee, city councilmember, committee member, or volunteer, must submit a travel authorization 

form to his/her supervisor and or the City Manager.  

II. Expense Report 

A travel expense report must be completed for all travel, even when a city issued credit card is used.  

Copies of receipts and supporting documents should be attached and submitted to the Finance Officer.  

Copies of itemized meal receipts must be submitted when requesting reimbursement.   

III. Advances and Credit Cards 

Employees issued a city credit card should typically use it to pay for expenses associated with approved 

travel.  Upon return, an expense report must be submitted to the supervisor with itemized receipts 

attached.  

In an instance where the employee requests advance funds, a travel expense form will be submitted to 

the supervisor no less than 2 weeks before the travel date.  

Any funds used either through an advance or a city credit card in conflict with this policy should be 

returned to the city.  Within 10 days of the final day of travel, all receipts with dates and a description of 

the service or item purchased will be submitted to the Finance Officer for verification purposes.  If 

documented expenses exceed the travel advance, the employee will receive a reimbursement for the 

difference.  If documented expenses are less than the travel advance, the employee will provide the City 

with the difference.  Failure to provide the appropriate documentation may result in disciplinary action 

up to and including termination.  The city reserves the right to deduct the advance from employees pay.  

The employee is responsible for funds advanced.  If funds are lost or stolen, the employee is responsible 

for repayment to the city.  

IV. Transportation 

A. Vehicle - City and Personal 

When the travel is less than 300 miles (one way), the city has the option to require the use of city owned 

vehicles.  Only one city vehicle should be used when more than one but less than four employees are 

traveling.  When a city vehicle is not furnished, the city will reimburse the employee at the city's current 

mileage reimbursement rate. Mileage Rate to be the IRS standard mileage rate The beginning and 

ending odometer reading must accompany requests for mileage reimbursement.  However, if a city 



vehicle is available, the traveler must use the city vehicle to be eligible for fuel expense to be paid by the 

city.  

B. Air, Rail and Bus 

Transportation reservations shall be obtained at the lowest fare possible, within reason, without causing 

undue hardship to the traveler.  Travel ust be by the most expeditious and direct route that is practical 

and commensurate with the nature and purpose of the traveler's assignment.  Coach or standard 

accommodations are required and only one checked bag is reimbursable.  Any other travel expenses 

such as parking and local transportation costs must be accompanied by receipts for service.   

C. Vehicle Rental 

A rental car may be used when public transportation is inconvenient or multiple employees are traveling 

making the use of a rental car economical or practical.  Rentals shall be limited to mid-size automobiles 

with standard accessories, unless circumstances dictate a larger vehicle.  Itemized receipts are required 

for reimbursement of any rental car costs including gas.  Employees shall not purchase any insurance 

such as collision or personal injury coverage offered by the rental firms. 

V. Lodging 

Hotel/motel charges shall qualify for reimbursement through approval of the supervisor.  The city 

standard reimbursement rate is for a single occupancy room or double occupancy if sharing with 

another employee.  Instances where it is more economical or the only option is a multiple occupancy 

room for a single employee will be reimbursed.  All traveling personnel shall minimize the expense 

associated with hotel/motel costs by procuring a government rate for qualified stays, when available.     

VI. Meals and Incidentals 

The City of Claremont allows a set per diem rate for each meal and incidental expenses as follows:  

Breakfast: $12 
Lunch:        $18 
Dinner:      $30 
 
For a total not to exceed $60 per day for meals and must be accompanied by original itemized receipts 

to qualify for approval by the Finance Officer.  Gratuities may not exceed 15% and count toward the per 

diem rate. Meals served as part of a conference, convention or class, will be reimbursed or prepaid at 

cost.  

VII. Miscellaneous Expense 

Expenses such as printing, copying and Wi-Fi usage are for business use only and should be coded as 

"other expenses" on the expense report.  These expenses shall be obtained at the most economic rate 

available. 



VIII. Non Reimbursable Expenses 

The following are non-reimbursable expenses: 

      - Laundry 
      - Personal entertainment (sporting events, movies, etc.) 
      - Personal phone calls 
      - Traffic and parking tickets 
      - Baggage overweight fees 
      - Theft, loss or damage of personal effects 
      - Personal care items 
 

IX. Exceptions 

Exceptions and variances to this policy are subject to the approval of the City Manager.  Requests should 

be submitted in writing before the date of travel. 



EXHIBIT 11D 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013   

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  2014 Council Meeting Dates  

 

Officially, set the 12 meeting dates for the Claremont City Council for calendar year 

2013.  This calendar adjusts the September meeting one week, to September 8, 2014 for 

labor day.  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Adopt Calendar    

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

2014 City Council Meeting Schedule  

January 6, 2014  

February 3, 2014  

March 3, 2104  

April 7, 2014  

May 5, 2014  

June 2, 2014  

July 7, 2014  

August 4, 2014  

September 8, 2014  

October 6, 2014  

November 3, 2014  

December 1, 2014  

 

All meetings will be held at 7:00pm in the Council 

Chambers located in City Hall.  



EXHIBITS 12/13 

 

 

Department, Committee & Manager Reports  
 

 

Date of Meeting: December 2, 2013    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council 

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Allow Departments, Committees & Manager to report on 

monthly activities and take questions.    

 

Item 12 
 

A. Youth Council  
B. Fire Department  
C. Police Department  
D. Public Works Department  
E. Rescue Squad 
F. Utilities Department  
G. Planning and Zoning 
H. Parks & Recreation Committee 
I. Appearance Committee  

 
 
Item 13 
 
City Managers Report  
 

 

 

Recommendation: Take Reports  

 

 

 

 

 



 Claremont Fire Department Monthly Report 

December 2, 2013 Council Meeting 

Fire Calls 

 Total Calls of Service: 30 

o Fires:      5 

o EMS Call:     0 

o Hazardous Condition Call:   0 

o Power line Down:    0 

o Service Call:     3 

o Vehicle Accidents:    10 

o Company Move-up / Standby:   1 

o Good Intent Calls:    4 

o Fire Alarms:     7 

 Large Grass and Woods Fire on Sunday November 10th. Burned 9.65 Acres, Majority was in a Soybean 

field.  Had assistance from Catawba, Bandys, Oxford, Conover, Newton, & Forestry Service. 

Training 

 Total Training Hours:  228.0 

 In-House Training:  95.5 

 Out of House Training: 132.5 

 Training Trailer Project Update: 

o Lot Preparation for is near completion, Railroad Tie Retaining Wall is in place. 

o Gravel arrived today, will be completed by tomorrow, Read y to move trailer, start construction. 

Service & Maintenance of Equipment 

 T-78 is having Transmission issues and has been taken to public works to be looked over 

 Several members have installed a building ladder to the back of the Fire Station.  This ladder was 

donated to the department and makes it quicker and safer to get on and off of the roof. 

Membership 

 Added 2 More Firefighters and 1 Junior Firefighter to the roster, Total Roster is now at 41 Members! 

Fire Prevention 

 Car Seat Total: 2 

o Checked Installation: 2 

 Programs: 3 

 Smoke Detectors Installs: 99 

 Batteries Replaced: 9 

 Carbon Monoxide Detector Installs: 4 

 Car Seat Diversity Ticket Class: 1 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Brian K. Helms, Assistant Chief 

Jason A. Lowrance, Training Captain 

Claremont Fire Department 



 

 
     Claremont Police Department 

Monthly Service 
November 2013 

 
Calls Answered 788 Citations Served 52 

Felonious Crimes 7 Warnings 52 

Misdemeanor 64 Business Escorts 49 

Accidents (PI) 1 Funeral Escorts 4 

Accidents (PD) 7 Animal Calls 2 

Warrants for Arrest 9 Vehicles Impounded 2 

Subpoenas Served 4 Alarms Answered 19 

Open Businesses 17 Motorist Assistance 24 

Property Checks 1399 Part-Time hours 258 

Court Hours 2   
 

Noted Events during the Month 
 

1. Sgt. Pope made an arrest for possession of Crack Cocaine. Suspect had 15 Crack rocks. 
2. Ofcr. Russell made 2 separate arrests for Domestic Assault. 
3. Lt. Long arrested a subject who had 13 outstanding warrants. 
4. Cpl. Clark arrested a subject who had warrants for Hit & Run and Damage to City Property. 
5. Sgt. Self, Cpl. Clark and Ofcr. Jarvis were involved in a traffic stop in which Officers were injured and 
a chase insued.Suspect was later arrested in Hickory.  
 
** Special Note** 
Officer Russell Brendle is now part of our part-time staff. 
Pam Shook and Sgt.Terri Pope both attended the Southern Software Conference in N. Myrtle Beach, SC.   
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                       Respectfully Submitted 

                                                                                                                 Gary E. Bost 
Chief of Police 

                                                                                                          
           



16 WATER TURNED ON 410 LEAF BAGS TAKEN TO LANDFILL

15 WATER TURNED OFF 4.17 TONS OF ROUGH TRASH PICKED UP

N/A METERS RE-READ 32 HRS. PICKING UP LIMBS

1 WATER LEAKS 20 HRS. MOWING

0 WATER TAPS 10 HRS. BUSH HOG

0 SEWER TAPS

1 DIRTY WATER COMPLAINTS 21 HRS. CLEAN STORM DRAINS

2006+11 JET SEWER LINES/ MANHOLES 65 HRS. CLEAN CURB & GUTTERING

4 # OF WHITE GOOD PICKUPS

60 OVERTIME HOURS 4 # OF TIMES RE-STOCK BATHROOMS

12 TRAINING HOURS 8 # OF TRASH PICKUPS

OTHER

Maintenance is continuing to work with the Wooten company  on mclin outfall sewer line

Maintenance is continuing to install new AMR water meters & meter boxes

removed old and installed new 2" water valve and meter box on heart drive 

CLAREMONT PUBLIC WORKS

MONTHLY REPORT

NOVEMBER 2013 

WATER DEPARTMENT MAINTENANCE DEPT.

PERSONNEL PARK

jetted out and cleaned 220 feet of main sewer line & 1 man hole on W Calvin st

jetted out and cleaned 191 feet of main sewer line & 1 man hole on Huffman St. 

jetted out and cleaned 574 feet of main sewer line & 4 man holes on oak St. 

jetted out and cleaned 338 feet of main sewer line & 1 man hole on W. Calvin St. 

jetted out and cleaned 683 feet of main sewer line & 4 man holes on N-Church St. 



Claremont Rescue Squad 

2748 S. Oxford St. 

Claremont, NC 28610 

“Volunteers Serving Proudly” 

 

 Responded to 68 calls, 58 were hot. Our average response time was 6:04. 

 Thanks to everyone that helped support our 20 Guns in 20 Days raffle, we 

will be doing another one next year.  

 Thanks to outgoing Mayor David Morrow, it has been a pleasure to have 

worked with you the past few years. Good luck in all of your future 

endeavors. Congratulations to Shawn Brown on being elected Mayor, we 

look forward to being able to continue to work with Him, Tim, Dayne Miller 

and the rest of the Council. 

 We had 2 members take Life Membership with the Rescue Squad. We 

would like to thank Jason Crooks and David Garrison on everything that 

they have done for Claremont Rescue Squad over the last 20 plus years for 

each. 

 We have voted 6 new members on in the past few months so you will be 

seeing some new faces around helping us with calls and events. 

 Thanks to the Claremont Rescue Auxiliary and Bunker Hill Hope Cures, they 

did a food drive and gathered enough food to help out about 10 families in 

the community so that they would have a warm Thanksgiving Dinner. 

 Claremont Rescue Squad would like to wish everyone a very Happy 

Thanksgiving and Merry Christmas. Please everyone stay safe and enjoy the 

holidays with your families and friends. 

 



 CITY OF CLAREMONT  

UTILITY SYSTEM 

MONTHLY UPDATE  

November  2013 
 

 
The City of Claremont operates a Utility System that includes  two water reciving vaults, two 
300,000 gallon elevated water storage tanks, five sewer pump stations, two waste water 
treatment plants, and roughly 25 miles of sewer and water lines. The two treatment plants 
are permitted to handle 400,000 gallons of waste water per day with 300,000 allocated to the 
McLin Creek plant and 100,000 to the North plant. The City of Claremont purchases all of its 
water from the City of Conover and contracts the operation of the waste water treament 
plants with the City of Hickory. This report is intended to give a snapshot of the monthly 
activities of the utility system. 
 

Claremont Water & Waste Water Customer Profile & Usage 

Month  Residential 
Water 
Customers  

Residential 
Water  
Usage 

Residential 
Active 
Sewer  

Commerical 
&Industrial  
Customers 

Commerical  
& Industrial  
Usage 

Commerical  
& Industrial  
Active Sewer 

June In 605 1,924,300 485 95 3,255,360 87 

June Out  174 537,600 10 13 198,500 3 

July In  598 2,406,900 480 94 4,381,950 86 

July Out  170 658,800 10 13 266,500 3 

August In  598 2,238,975 479 96 3,823,767 88 

August Out  171 710,300 10 13 248,700 3 

September In  593 1,855,800 474 96 3,774,600 88 

September Out  171 561,700 10 12 226,200 3 

October In  591 2,113,400 472 96 4,106,800 88 

October Out  172 588,600 10 12 225,800 3 

November In  596 2,553,300 477 96 4,191,500 88 

November Out 174 690,400 10 13 270,700 3 

 
 

Claremont Water Usage vs Water Purchased 

Month Purchased from Conover Billed by Claremont 

February 2013  5,849,000 5,894,432 

March 2013  7,769,000 5,652,828 

April 2013  6,132,500 5,056,450 

May 2013   6,437,500 6,895,760 

June 2013  7,542,000 5,915,760 

July 2013  8,859,000 7,714,150 

August 2013  8,380,500 7,021,742 

September 2013 6,418,300 8,033,000 

October 2013 9,120,000 7,034,600 

November 2013 7,705,900 7,228,500 



System Activities  

 Continuing to evaluate regional options for wastewater treatment  

 Working with Catawba County to extend a water line to the Bunker Hill Covered Bridge  

 Working with FEMA and NCEM on damage assesments from the July 27th flooding  

McLin Creek WWTP  

McLin Creek WWTP- October 2013 - NPDES Compliance  

Parameter  Limitation Minimum Maximum Average 

Flow, GPD  300,000 76,000 200,000 143,000 

BOD  mg/l 16.0mg 4.2 9.9 6.7 

TSS mg/l 30mg 2.8 4.4 3.7 

Fecal Coliform 200ml 1 39 4 

Ammonia-Nitrogen, mg/l 2.0mg .11 .13 .12 

Dissovled Oxygen, mg/l 5.0mg 6.7 7.9 7.4 

 

Mclin Creek WWTP Flow, Gallons per day 

Month  Min Max Average 

October 2013  76,000 200,000 143,000 

September 2013 28,000 211,000 155,000 

August 2013 105,000 304,000 199,000 

July 2013  118,000 454,000 209,000 

June 2013 24,000 236,000 141,000 

May 2013 34,000 256,000 135,000 

April 2013 89,000 265,000 154,000 

March 2013 78,000 217,000 132,000 

February 2013 83,000 439,000 157,000 

January 2013 79,000 541,000 161,000 

December 2012 53,000 328,000 119,000 

November 2012 58,000 158,000 113,000 

October 2012 75,000 197,000 133,000 

 

NCDENR LETTERS & NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS 

 None 

 

 

 

 

 



North WWTP 

North WWTP October 2013 - NPDES Permit Compliance 

Parameter  Limitation Minimum Maximum Average 

Flow, GPD  100,000 37,000 81,000 61,000 

BOD  mg/l 30.0mg 4.7 7.8 6.5 

TSS mg/l 30mg 4.0 20 10.3 

Fecal Coliform 200ml 1 8 2 

Ammonia-Nitrogen, mg/l 4.0mg .21 .36 .28 

Dissovled Oxygen, mg/l 5.0mg 6.7 8.4 7.9 

 

North WWTP Flow, Gallons per day 

Month  Min Max Average 

October 2013 37,000 81,000 61,000 

September 2013 54,000 79,000 60,000 

August 2013 29,000 111,000 65,000 

July 2013  55,000 182,000 84,000 

June 2013  45,000 81,000 63,000 

May 2013 34,000 165,000 76,000 

April 2013 58,000 153,000 79,000 

March 2013 58,000 93,000 69,000 

February 2013 52,000 177,000 75,000 

January 2013  40,000 164,000 76,000 

December 2012 53,000 180,000 104,000 

November 2012 53,000 107,000 76,000 

October 2012 55,000 83,000 67,000 

 
NCDENR LETTERS & NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS  

 None  

Claremont Waste Water Collections System 

 
No Fines  

 
 Working with FEMA and NCEM on remaining clean up needed along Lyle and McLin 

Creeks.  
 Applying for State grants to clean up McLin Creek debris 

 

 
 



 
 Claremont Planning Report 

November 2013  
 
 

Zoning Permits Issued 

 
 3167 W. Main St – 16 Unit PUD-Residential as approved CUP 13-1 
 2711 Sigfield Dr – New Single Family Home 
 Finalized Certificate of Occupancy for Bed, Bath and Beyond 
 

Code Enforcement 

 

 Monitored sign issues 
 

Planning Board Work 

 

 Planning Board met in November 
 
Other Work 

 
 Answered numerous zoning/planning questions 
 Worked with Sam Erwin regarding sidewalk/greenway map for 

Recreation Plan  
 Submitted Claremont Action Plan for Regional Hazard Mitigation 

Plan 
 Worked with consultant regarding a co-location of wireless equipment 

at 3426 Bunker Hill Road 
 November 7th- Attended Trail Building Workshop on November 7 
 November 11th – Meet with County officials and City Manager 

regarding Claremont’s use of County Permitting software  
 November 14th – Attended the Parks Public Input session at Noon 
 November 20th – Meet with Bed Bath and Beyond Contractor and 

Public Works director regarding a drainage issues 
 

 
 
 



Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
Public Meeting

WHAT:     Public meeting to help finalize the Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

WHEN:    Tuesday, December 10, 2013 
                   “Come and go” anytime from 4 p.m. to 7 p.m. 

WHERE:  Western Piedmont Council of Governments
                   1880 2nd Ave. NW, Hickory
                   Conference Room A1

Floods, Wildfires, Tornadoes, Winter Storms, Hurricanes...What Concerns You?
Do you have ideas for helping our community become better prepared for future natural disasters?

You are invited to come have a first look at a draft of your community’s latest mitigation action items and 
leave your comments for the final decision-making process. This will be our final public meeting as part of 
this planning effort so don’t miss this important opportunity to participate!

About the Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
The counties of Alexander, Burke, Caldwell and Catawba, in coordination with their participating municipal jurisdictions, are 
finalizing a regional hazard mitigation plan that covers the four-county Unifour area. The Unifour Regional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan identifies local policies and actions for reducing risk and future losses from natural hazards such as floods, severe storms, 
wildfires, and winter weather. It builds upon four separate hazard mitigation plans that were initially prepared by each county 
in coordination with their municipalities. 

For More Information
If you would like to learn more, please contact one of the following county coordinators for this project:

You can also visit http://www.catawbacountync.gov/emergencyServices/hazard/regionalPlan.asp for more information.   

We hope to see you on December 10!

Announcement

Russell Greene, Alexander County Emergency Services
828.632.9336 / rgreene@alexandercountync.gov

Michael Long, Burke County Emergency Management 
828.764.9321 / mike.long@burkenc.org

Kenneth Teague, Caldwell County Emergency Management
828.850.3947 / kteague@caldwellcountync.org

Mary George, Catawba County Planning
828.465.8264 / mary@catawbacountync.gov

http://www.catawbacountync.gov/emergencyServices/hazard/regionalPlan.asp
mailto:rgreene%40alexandercountync.gov?subject=
mailto:mike.long%40burkenc.org?subject=
mailto:kteague%40caldwellcountync.org?subject=
mailto:mary%40catawbacountync.gov?subject=


 1

Parks and Recreation Committee 

City of Claremont 
 Report 

November 25, 2013 
 

Opening:  Chairperson Tim Lowrance called the meeting to order. 
 
Minutes Approved:  Chairperson Tim Lowrance asked if there were any changes or 
 corrections to the minutes.  Hearing none a motion was made to approve the 
 minutes. 
 
Park Survey:  Chairperson Lowrance introduced Sam Erwin to update the results on the 
 park survey.  Mr. Erwin stated that he had received 75 returns on the survey.  He 
 stated that was a good return.  He went over the list of suggestions that were 
 gathered at the two hearings.  He had a page and a half of suggestions.  Mr. Erwin 
 stated that the next step would be to get a cost factor for each item, then bring it 
 back to the committee to put the list in a priority.  This should be done to cover a 
 15 year schedule to accomplish the items on the list.  The funding for these 
 projects could be obtained through private grants and a grant with the state of 
 North Carolina.  One facility that got a lot of attention was the splash pad.  He 
 gave out a picture of the one in Conover, and it only cost $40,000.00.  There were 
 a lot of suggestions for more walking trails and the joint collaboration with the 
 Claremont Elementary School to develop their ball field for city programming. 
 
New Idea:  Henry Helton stated that our Senior Citizens Breakfast attendance has been 
 dropping off, and he suggested that the name be changed to “Golden Treasures 
 Fellowship”.   The emphasis would not be aimed to the Senior Citizen, but to the 
 mature adult who has given all of their energy to the building of their families and 
 this community.  They would still have a monthly breakfast with programs that 
 enhance their knowledge of the community.  There was also a suggested list of 
 possible “Come See” tours that the “Fellowship” could pursue.   
  
  There was discussion to have the “Come See” tours visit industry here in 
 Claremont.  One other suggestion was to go back to having breakfast at Box Car 
 Grille.  Henry stated. “This is a spring board to get your thoughts on the subject, 
 and to make some changes that you feel are needed to make the program grow.”   
 This will be on the agenda at the next meeting of the committee. 
 
Christmas Parade:  Danny stated that the applications are coming in slowly, but he feels 
 that we will have close to 140 entries.  The marching groups will be staged at the 
 cemetery.  Floats will be staged at the old truck depot.  Santa’s float will be the 
 last one again.  Henry will put out the markers on Friday along the parade route in 
 groups of ten about 300 feet apart.  The committee can then place them where 
 they need them on Saturday.  Helton has arranged for golf carts to be picked up 
 by Public Works on Friday afternoon and returned first thing Monday morning.  
 Henry will make the cards with the numbers on them from 1 to 150.  He will 



 2

 follow Santa on Saturday at the end of the parade to pick up the standards.  All 
 committee members were asked to give Danny some assistance on Saturday of the 
 parade directing groups to their places in the line up.  Henry stated that there will 
 be one food vendor at the parade.  They asked about the cost, and he suggested 
 that they give a donation to the PJ Stanley Scholarship fund.  
 
  Pictures will be handled by the Youth Council in the Council Chambers 
 and the Library.  Parents will be able to take their own pictures.    
 
Christmas Dinner:  He has a number of large door prizes to be given away, and Angie 
 stated that two clubs at Bunker Hill High School will be making novelty pins to 
 give to the seniors.  Last year the students gave the seniors a Christmas ornament 
 that they had made.  The committee members were asked to seek places that may 
 provide a gift to the seniors.    
 
Adjournment:  There being no further business the meeting was adjourned. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Henry H. Helton, Jr.  


	RFBA Regular Meeting Minutes 5a
	Nov 4 2013 Regular
	RFBA CLOSED MINUTES 5b
	November  4 2013 Closed Session Minutes
	RFBA 5c votes
	Votes
	RFBA CCC
	RFBA Audit FY 13
	2013 Audit Presentation
	RFBA BGA
	Spec Building Claremont Meeting
	RFBA Swearing In
	Oath- Brown
	Oath- Miller
	Oath- Lowrance
	RFBA  Mayor Pro Tem, Committees
	RFBA Fire Chief
	Oath- Travis-Cheif
	WPCOG
	Resolution 08-13 WPCOG Policy Board 2014
	2014 City Council Meeting Schedule
	RFBA Reports2
	Police Report
	Claremont Rescue Squa9
	StaffReport_nov
	public_meeting_ad_12-10-13
	P & R report 11-25-13



